IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO: SC09-2163

Lower Tribunal Case Number(s): 3D08-1094; 07-16793

ALFREDO MORENO-GONZALEZ,

Petitioner/Appellant

-VS-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent/Appellee.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

MARTIN L. ROTH, P. A.

Florida Bar No: 265004 1 East Broward Boulevard, Suite 700 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 (954) 745-7697 (954) 745-7698

Counsel for Alfredo Moreno-Gonzalez

INTRODUCTION

Appellant, Alfredo Moreno Gonzalez, was the Appellee before the District Court of Appeal and was the Defendant in the Trial Court. The State of Florida was the prosecution in the Trial Court and the Appellant before the District Court of Appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Defendant was arrested in his home on May 16, 2007 and subsequently charged with trafficking in Marijuana over 25 pounds. A motion to suppress was filed raising various issues including (1) how probable cause was obtained, (2) material false statements or omissions in the warrant application, and (3) the failure of the affiant/applicant to have signed the application for the search warrant, contrary to Fla. Stat. § 933.06.

The motion to suppress was presented to the Trial Court. After an evidentiary hearing the Court ruled the search unlawful and ordered suppression, on the ground that the failure of the applicant to sign the warrant application rendered the search unlawful. The Court based its ruling on the requirements set forth in Fla. Stat. § 933.06 which reads in applicable part as follows:

The judge must, before issuing the warrant, have the application of some person for said warrant duly sworn to and subscribed, and may receive further testimony from witnesses or supporting affidavits, or depositions in writing, to support the application...

The Trial Court declined to rule on the other issues raised, which it deemed as raising constitutional issues and confined its ruling to the statutory violation of Fla. Stat. § 933.06.

The Third District Court of Appeals reversed the Trial Court finding that

Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution rendered Fla. Stat. § 933.06 invalid, or, alternatively that application of the exclusionary rule to a Section 933.06 violation was prohibited by the 1982 Amendment to Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution.

After denial of a motion for rehearing a notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction was filed. Admittedly, the Defendant/Appellant is uncertain whether Fla. Stat. § 933.06 has been explicitly declared invalid, which would clearly vest jurisdiction under Fla. R. App. P. 9.030 (a)(1)(A)(ii); or whether only application of the exclusionary rule was ruled inapplicable to a Section 933.06 violation, which would allow for discretionary review under Rule 9.120, Fla. R. App. P. Finding Fla. Stat. § 933.06 invalid is implicit if not explicit under either analysis.

Defendant/Appellant determined the most prudent approach was to brief jurisdiction and await the determination of the Court regarding its jurisdiction in this cause.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Third District Court of Appeal erred in finding that the 1982 Amendment to Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution prohibited the Trial Court from applying the exclusionary rule to remedy a violation of Fla. Stat. § 933.06. The statute requires that there be a signed and sworn application before a Judge prior to issuance of a warrant.

ARGUMENT

The majority 2-1 decision points out that with the 1982 Amendment to Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution "Florida Courts became bound to follow the interpretations of the United States Supreme Court with relation to the Fourth Amendment..." at page 4, decision of the District Court of Appeals.

The decision of the District Court majority advances the position that the United States Supreme Court, in <u>United States v. Ventresca</u>, 380 US 109 (1965) provides precedent and controlling authority requiring reversal of the Trial Court. The District Court sets forth the ruling in Ventresca as follows:

[T]he Fourth Amendment's Commands, like all constitutional requirements, are practical and not abstract. If the teachings of the Court's cases are to be followed and the constitutional policy served, affidavits for search warrants, such as the one involved here, must be tested and interpreted by magistrates and courts in a commonsense and realistic fashion. They are normally drafted by nonlawyers in the midst and haste of a criminal investigation. Technical requirements of elaborate specificity once exacted under common law pleadings have no proper place in the area. (emphasis in original)

Ventresca, 380 U.S. at 108 (emphasis added).

Decision of the District Court, p. 7. <u>Ventresca</u> should have no bearing on this case unless an affiant's signature to an affidavit is deemed by this Court to be a "technical requirement of elaborate specificity..." <u>Ventresca</u> at 108

As pointed out in the dissent at page 16, the failure to sign the application/affidavit is not technical. Rather, it is substantive. Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution States that a search warrant cannot be issued except upon probable cause "supported by affidavit[.]" Pursuant to Fla. Stat. § 933.06 (2007) the affidavit must be signed. Fla. Stat. § 933.18 also requires sworn proof by affidavit prior to a search of a dwelling.

Fla. Stat. § 933.06 was amended by the legislature in 1997 and in 2004, each time leaving in the requirement that an application for search warrant be signed. These amendments are after the 1982 amendment to Article I, Section 12 of the Florida Constitution.

Florida follows the rule that warrant requirements "must conform strictly to the constitutional and statutory provisions authorizing their issue." <u>Jackson vs.</u> <u>Sate</u>, 99 So. 548, 542 (Fla. 1924); cf. <u>State v. Vargas</u>, 667 So.2d 175, 176-177 (Fla. 1995).

No remedy, other than the exclusionary rule in Article I, Section 12, exists as a part of Florida criminal procedure to address or remedy unlawful searches and seizures. The 1982 amendment to Article I, Section 12, referred to as the "Conformity Clause" never should come into play in this case since there is no United States Supreme Court case factually and legally on point. The Supreme Court cases referenced in the majority decision are not factually similar to this case.

This is not a situation where a Trial Court has ruled in contravention of United States Supreme Court precedent. The Trial Court's decision was consistent with the Florida constitutional and statutory requirements that an affidavit in support of a warrant be signed. The United States Supreme Court has never considered this issue and Florida law requires strict construction of warrant requirements. Therefore this Court has jurisdiction to review the District Court's decision which renders Fla. Stat. § 933.06 invalid.

CONCLUSION

Wherefore, the Defendant respectfully requests the Florida Supreme Court to determine and accept jurisdiction of this appeal and allow the parties to brief this issue in full.