IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC09-2163 DCA CASE NO. 3D08-1094

ALFREDO MORENO-GONZALEZ,

Petitioner,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW TO THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

BILL McCOLLUM Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RICHARD L. POLIN Bureau Chief, Criminal Appeals Florida Bar No. 0230987

NIKOLE HICIANO Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar Number 0844411 Office of the Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 444 Brickell Avenue, Suite 650 Miami, Florida 33131 (305) 377-5850 (W) (305) 377-5655 (F)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner, Alfredo Moreno-Gonzalez, was the defendant in the trial court and Appellee in the District Court of Appeal, Third District. Respondent, the State of Florida, was the prosecution in the trial court and the Appellant in the District Court of Appeal, Third District.

The following facts are taken from the Third District's majority opinion in Moreno-Gonzalez v. State, 18 So. 3d 1180 (Fla. 3d DCA 2009). In its opinion, the district court noted that although the affidavit was not signed, it was undisputed that probable cause was shown by the officer swearing to the allegations in the affidavit under oath before the judge, initialing each of the pages of the affidavit, and also initialing each of the three pages of the search warrant. Id. at 1180-81. The district court noted that under the 1982 amendments to article I, section 12 of the Florida Constitution, the court was required to construe the right against unreasonable searches and seizures in conformity with the 4th Amendment to the United States Constitution, as interpreted by the United States Supreme Court. Moreno-Gonzalez, 18 So. 3d at 1181-1183.

The district court noted that the in construing the Fourth Amendment, the United States Supreme Court has stated that that "courts should not invalidate the warrant by interpreting the affidavit in a hypertechnical, rather than a

commonsense, manner." Id. at 1183 (citing to United States v. Ventresca, 380 U.S. 102, 109, 85 S.Ct. 741, 13 L.Ed. 2d 684 (1965). The court found that it would be entirely unrealistic and lacking in common sense to find that the technical deficiency of failing to sign a document, the contents of which were sworn to under oath and initialed on each page, was fatal to the question of probable cause for the issuance of a search warrant. Moreno-Gonzalez, 18 So. 3d at 1184. Furthermore, although the Florida Constitution provides that probable cause is to be "supported by affidavit," under Florida Statute sections 92.525 and 92.50(1), the affidavit at issue was sufficient to support the issuance of the warrant and the absence of a signature was not fatal. Moreno-Gonzalez, 18 So. 3d at 1184-85. The court held that the trial court erred in finding that the lack of signature on the affidavit was fatal and suppressing the evidence as a result. Moreno-Gonzalez, 18 So. 3d at 1185.

Petitioner now seeks review in this Court.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Petitioner fails to invoke any proper basis for this Court's jurisdiction. The decision of the Third District Court does not in expressly construe the state or federal constitution. Further, the majority's opinion does not render Florida Statute section 933.06 invalid. Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise its jurisdiction to review the lower court's decision

ARGUMENT

THE COURT DOES NOT HAVE MANDATORY THE JURISDICTION AS DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DOES NOT INVALIDATE A STATE STATUTE. THIS COURT SHOULD ALSO DECLINE **EXERCISE** ITS DISCRETIONARY TO JURISDICTION AS THE DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DOES NOT EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE THE STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTION.

Petitioner fails to establish any basis for this Court to exercise its jurisdiction. In his brief on jurisdiction, Petitioner argues that that the Third District Court of Appeal's opinion in Moreno-Gonzalez v. State, 18 So. 3d 1180 (Fla. 3d DCA 2009), renders Florida Statute section 933.06 invalid. For the following reasons there is no basis to invoke this Court's mandatory jurisdiction. Petitioner also attempts to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction. The Court should also decline to exercise its discretionary review jurisdiction in this matter.

The jurisdiction of this Court is limited to a narrow class of cases enumerated in the Florida Constitution. As this Court explained in <u>The Florida Star v. B.J.F.</u>, 530 So. 2d 286, 288 (Fla. 1988), the state constitution creates two separate concepts regarding this Court's discretionary review. The first concept is the broad general grant of subject-matter jurisdiction. The second more limited

concept is a constitutional command as to how this Court may exercise its discretion in accepting jurisdiction. 530 So. 2d at 288.

Petitioner attempts to invoke this Court's mandatory review jurisdiction by alleging that the Third District Court of Appeal's opinion in Moreneno-Gonzalez holds Florida Statute section 933.06 invalid. Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(1)(A)(ii) mirrors article V, section 3(b)(1) of the Florida Constitution. It states that "[t]he supreme court shall review, by appeal ... decisions of district courts of appeal declaring invalid a state statute or a provision of the state constitution." However, despite the Petitioner's arguments to the contrary, the district court has not rendered Florida Statute section 933.06 invalid. majority's opinion never even cites Florida Statute section 933.06. Indeed, this Court lacks jurisdiction over the instant matter as the language warranting jurisdiction must be included in the majority opinion. See Bryd v. State, 880 So. 2d 615 (Fla. 2004)(where this Court determined that it lacked jurisdiction over a case in which a concurring opinion declared a statute invalid, because Jenkins v. State, 385 So. 2d 1356 (Fla. 1980), required that the language warranting jurisdiction be included in the majority opinion.) Therefore, this Court does not have mandatory appellate jurisdiction to review the opinion below because the district court of appeal did not invalidate any state statute.

Petitioner next tries to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court. Specifically, article V, section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), which provide that the discretionary jurisdiction of the jurisdiction may be sought to review decisions of the district court of appeal that expressly construe a provision of the state or federal constitution. Again, the basis for this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction must appear within the four corners of the majority decisions. See e.g. Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986); Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

This Court has held that for discretionary review to be applicable, the opinion must "expressly" construe language or terms of the federal or state constitution. Armstrong v. City of Tampa, 106 So. 2d 407 (Fla. 1958). Therefore, a decision of a district court of appeal is not reviewable under article V, section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution merely because it has the practical effect of construing a provision of the state or federal constitution. See Miami Herald Publishing Co. v. Brautgam, 121 So. 2d 431 (Fla. 1960)(where this Court rejected jurisdictional arguments based on an "inherent construction" even before the insertion of the term "expressly" in article V, section 3(b)(3)). "Section 3(b)(3) plainly requires a written statement explaining or defining the disputed

constitutional language." Florida Appellate Practice, § 3.8 (2010).

The Third District's opinion in the case below does cite to article I, section 12 of the Florida Constitution. However, the district court is not construing the terms or language of the provision. Rather, the court is acknowledging that the provision specifically states that the right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects shall be construed in conformity with the 4th Amendment to the United State Constitution, as interpreted by the United States Supreme Court. The district court then applied the facts in this matter to federal Therefore, while the district court's decision in Moreno-Gonzales case law. turned on the application of constitutional principles to the facts of the case, this is not enough to furnish a basis to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court under section 3(b)(3). Page v. State, 113 So. 2d 557 (Fla. 1959) (where this Court found that a lower court's application of facts to a constitutional principle does not result in jurisdiction.). Petitioner's disagreement with the Third District's opinion is not a basis to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction. Accordingly, the petition to invoke this Court's review should be denied.

CONCLUSION

On the basis of the foregoing, this Court should decline to exercise its jurisdiction to review the lower court's decision.